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Dear Reader :

Pranam |

This week we bring you something more
than a formal review of Wali Khan's *‘Facts
are Facts : the Untold Story of India’s Parti-
tion"; we bring you the quintessence of that
book. It proves conclusively that the Parti-
tion of India was an imperialist plot, of which
the Muslims were enthusiastic but unwitting
victims—along, of course, with the Hindus
who were scandalised by the whole thing
Wisdom—Hindu and Muslim, Indian and
Pakistani—demands that this continuing
conspiracy is defeated. It is never too late.

We also bring you a professional appre-
ciation of Justice Krishna Iyer. And then

This month’s ‘Page From History’ throws
some light on the Indian roots of Egyptian
civilization. Itis said that people from the
west coast of India went to Egypt, Greece
ete.—via an ancient canal, connecting the
Red Sea to the Mediterranean, through the
eastern-most channel of the  Nileestuary |
These people were the Phoenicians (‘Panis’
of Rigveda ?) who lighted the lamp of culture
in the Mediterranean litoral |

Truly, History is stranger then fiction.

Yours brotherly,
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Wali Khan telis the “Untold Story

of India’s

In his book ‘FACTS ARE FACTS;

conspiracy to

the one hand and
. the other; and he
Boves it to the hilt.

In the beginning, and particularly
1857, the British were very hostile
b Muslims—and correspondingly friend-
j o Hindus. When, however, the
indus, after 1905, began to talk of
iadeshi and Swarajya, the British be-
increasingly anti-Hindu and pro-
jidim. They were confirmed in this
W policy by the realisation that while
fizdus ere confined to Tndia, Muslims
Bere spread from the  Atlantic, across-
fica, Middle East and Asia, to the
ific. Favouring Muslims in India,
bould help them in their relations with
fzens of Muslim countries.

When, however, Hindus and Muslims
afat issue in 1921,
British were stunned. But they soon

llins more than ever before. When the
Khilafat Committee consisting of Mus-

Biuslims had. The Nizam of Hyderabad
persuaded to issue a firman, dubb-
flgthe Khilafat Movement “anti-Mus-
¥ When Gandhiji and Ali Brothers

e British staged a riot in Aligarh

§The failure of the Khilafat Move-
nt, and the 2 i

Partition”

of 1921 movement, led to much frustra-
tion, anger, and in-fighting. In his Sept.
21, 1922, note to the Secretary of State,
the Viceroy, Lord Reading, gloated : “I
bave just sent you a telegram, which
will show you, how near we have been
toa complete break between Muslims
and Hindus.” On Jan 1, 1925, the Vic-
ceroy wrote to the Secretary of State :
“The bridge Gandhiji had built to span
the gulf between the Hindus and Moham-
medans, has not only broken down but,
I think, it has completely disappeared.”

In this Operation Sabotage, the
British were particularly helped by
Mohammed Shafi and Fazli Hussain of
the Punjab. After 1936 elections, Sikander
Hayat, Chief Minister of Punjab,
and Fazlul Hug, Chief Minister of
Bengal, joined the Muslim League on the
“advice” of the Viceroy.

The British tried to use Muslims,
Harijans and Princes against the Free-
dom Movement. Gandhiji’s Fast-unto-
death, leading to Poona Pact with Dr.
Ambedkar, made the Harijan card un-
available. And the Princes were too
powerless and gutless to either support
or oppose, either the Freedom Movement
or the British. Secretary of State Amery
moaned on Oct. 1,1943 : “It has been a
real mistake of ours in the past not to
encourage Indian Princes to marry Eng-
lish wives for a succession of generations
and so breed a more virile type of a
native ruler.” Obviously he thought that
Anglo-Indian products of such princely
marriages would have been at once more
assertive and more pro-British | How-
ever, hich forbade such mar-
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The real leader of the Muslim
League was—ithe Viceroy !

riages—and self-respect, do not go to-
gether.

And so the British were lefc with only
one card—the Muslim card; and they
played it to the last round. On Feb, 2,
1931, the Viceroy told Fazli-Huss
that they must “build up a great organi-
sation which might focus all constructiv
efforts to fight the Congress”. The Lea-
gue, accordingly, prepared a scheme,
“‘the financial aspect of which was the
responsibility of the Princely states.”

(. 8)

Since Jinnah at that stage was still
not dancing to British tunes, the Muslim
League was split. The pro-British Fazli-
Shafi wing was now presided over by
Igbal, who was now favoured with a
Rs. 500 monthly gift by the Nawab of
Bhopal—by courtesy the British ! (Iqbal
responded by singing of the Nawab

-ifslam, the “star of Islam”.

a Sir Saheb, singing for his

supper.) Sikander Hayat, Chief Minister

of the Punjab, was also sniping at Jinnah,
to the intense delight of the Viceory.

However, the out-break of World
War II, changed all that. The Congress
opposition to the war effort, very much
irritated the British. The protest resi
nations  of eight provincial Congress
ministries were perceived as a slap in the
British face. The British now decided to
build up the Muslim League as an orga-
nisation united in its hatred of Hindus
and Congress, and opposed to the unity
and independence of India. And when
the British decided to  treat Jinnah on

|

par with Gandbi, the former agreed (0
toe the British line. The fate of [ndiis
unity was sealed

When the Muslim League offered to.
promote British policy, the British Goy
ernment responded by bringing all the
Muslims under the banner of the Muslin
League. On 5 October 1939, the  Viceroy
wrote : “He (Jinnah) thanked me will
much graciousness for what I had dope
to assist him in keeping his party togeller
and expressed great gratitude for thish
(21) Notes Wali Khan : “The party way
Jinnah’s, but keeping it together was the
Viceroy’s responsibility.”

At this same meeting, the Viceroy siid
that Jinnah complained bitterly about e
excesses committed by the Congress
Goiernments against the Muslims. The*
Viceroy replied that, to the best of hig
knowledge, 1:0 excess had been committed
As a matter of fact, he added, this fecling
may be an outcome of the Muslim Leagi
paranoia. To this, Jinnah replied that
one example of excess was the Frontier
Government ruling that Hindi should be
made a compulsory subject in all schools)

Says Wali Khan : “The above statement
has no semblance of truth. Jinnah had
to scratch around to find proof of hi§
allegation. But he coulds not have selects
ed a more absurd example. The Frontier
Government had declared a compulsory
language, but it happened to be Pashti
Perhaps Jinnah, being so out of fouch
with real India, could not tell the differ=
ence between Hindi,and Pashtu,”

August, 195
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Incidentally, all Indian languages
s reck to Mr. Jinnah.
ndhiji once wrote to him a letter in
Gujerati with a copy in Urdu. Jinnah
fessed he didn’t understand either of
bem well enough.

However, the British were not content
ilh the League saying ‘o’ to  whatever
aid; they wanted it to make
demand of its own. On

¥ meant Muslim League. The Viceroy
sannoyed that here was an Indian
firty, scking advice from its colonial

But the Viceroy was hardly

fitit was quite useless to appeal for
in Great Britain for a party
filose policy was one of sheer negation”.”

The “positive” policy, Jinnah and
fie Viceroy agreed on, was that the
gue should demand Pakistan ! On
Jach 12, 1940, the Viceroy informed
Secretary of State : “Upon my ins-
tion, Zafrullah wrote a memoran-
the subject, Two Dominion

lites 1 have also thanked him for fur-
flir clarification which, he says, is forth
fiming. He is anxious, however, that no

s plan”. (29)
Zafrullah was a Qadiani, a d

0t Muslim sect, that was inspired by
British in the Punjab in the last
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century. Quadianis were, therefore, con-
sistently pro-British. It was this ‘Two
Dominion States’ Memorandum that was
adopted by the Muslim League at Lahore
as its Pakistan resolution on March 23,
1940 !

When in May 1940, over a hundred
independent  Muslim leaders met in
Delhi and took a reasonable line, the
Viceroy refused to take note of them.
On May 14, he wrote to the Secretary of
State : “I attach no particular impor-
tance to the Delhi Conference of the
Muslims which took place a few days
ago. It has been well-organised and the
British press machine has written it up
admirably......We both are, of course,
aware that there is a not unimportant
Muslim element outside the Muslim
League...indeed, I am sure that Jinnah
remains the man to deal with on the
Muslim side.’

The Khaksars offered to help the war
effort by recruiting 50,000 soldiers. But
the Viceroy refused even to answer their
telegram; they had decided on Jinnah
as the sole representative of Indian
Muslims, on their own terms !

Nationalist Muslims led by Allah

: Chief Minister of Sind,
and member of Viceroy’s Defence Coun-
cil, met again in Delhi in 1941. They
made some constitutional proposals
and asked for the release of Nehru and
Azad. But the Viceroy efused to deal
with him. In his letter dated 11 October
1941, the Viceroy wrote an account of
their altercation on this issue : “He ask-

The British commissioned Zafrullah
to prepare the Pakistan Plan
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The British asked the Punjab
Premier not to leave the League

ed me, “When am I likely to hear about
your decision 2 I replied, “You will hear
nothing. You are not my Advi-
sers, but the Prime of Sind.
have not the least intention of telling you
how I propose to handle my busine
and 1 trust you understand that’. He said
“You are very frank’, I said, ‘I am bound
1o be frank. This is my business and my
responsibility’.” (36)

one of
finister

Remarks Wali Khan : “I twas ironical
that the Viceroy of India did not allow a
member of his own Defence Council the
right to receive feedback on his propo-
sals. On tl
sulted the leaders of the
and political issues.

contrary, he personally con-
Muslim League
His
peaking to a national leader
was most offensive. The British spared
1o effort to make it clear to all Muslims
that unless they paid homage to Jinnah,
they remain
them.”

on national
manner of

would non-entities for

Seeing all this, Jinnah beg
come 100 big even for the big boots given
him by the British. He asked for League
ministries to be set up in Hindu-majority
making  this demand,
displ

provinces. By

Jinnah incurred temporary sure of

the British. The Viceroy wrote on 10
Tuly 1940 Jinnah will not
continue to press his extravagant claim
1f he does, I think myself, that
definitely have to whether
should continue efforts which I so
far have made, to keep the Muslims to-

ther.” When round that
the British were annoyed with Jinnah,
every Muslim leader started offering his

““I hope that
we may

consider
the

we

word got

services’. The Viceroy wrote about
an offer by the Chief Minister of
Nizam-of Hyderabad, Sir Akbar Hydi
The Jetter is dated 29
“You may be
Hydari, duri

August
hear

g our conversation 4
days ago, coyly hinted to
there should be trouble with

amused to

Jinnali

avery prominent
steer the country

Nizam’s leadership wa
Hyderabad.
lovers®

Hydari  of
Khan
old habit of political gam

‘These were

March 1, 1941 letter toMl
Secretary of State, the Viceroy wrofedl
Sikander Hayat told him that there Wi§
difference of

In his

between him

Comi
He expie
sed his desire to resign from the Comil

tee.

opinion
the Muslim League Working
on the question of Pakistan

The Viceroy sent a messag
Punjab Governor, Sir Henry Cra
Hayat from  resig
“This is not the moment at which
to see any split in the Muslim o
I think 7t is vety important (tiresomey
may be'in somoii
maintain it as a solid political culi
interest in keepingl
“That is more desirablé§
moving into the next phi
Gandhi Satyagraha campaign, andil
fissure in the Muslim ranks, more i
cularly over this vital question of B
tan . . would be a very great encolil
ment to the anti-war party and might

stop Sikander

its activities

He then spells his

party intact
we are
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ke our position in dealing with Satya-
filaba more difficult”. (35)

In January 1942, Chiang
filted India to help bridge British-Cong-
differences. ‘The Viceroy wro'e to
e Sccretary of State on Jan. 26, 1942::
know you would at once take the
it of his seeing Jinnah as well as the
lier two. 1 shall have to coax him to
fieive the Head of the Muslim League,
Bilthcr he fecls inclined or not.” The
Congress-League
quality” to imperial
As Jinnah was happy to reveal
held in

Bindhiji was all in all. But now he sang
fliflerent tune. ““After the war (began)
s tr-ated on the same basis as Mr.
Bindhi. 1 was wonderstruck why all of
fidden 1 was promoted and given a
fe side by side with Mr Gandhi.”

Gandhiji saw through the British
fie. On April 24, 1943, therefore, he
fifessed a letter to Jinnah in which he
i the British could transfer power to
But the British had no intention of
ferring power—certainly not to a
filed ndia— whether under  Gandhi or
fider Jinnah. Jinnah had said that the
Bilish dare not stop a letter addressed
i But the British did exactly that—on
Biichill's personal orders. And Jinnah
Bitonly pocketed the insult, he came to
efence of the British by saying that
Was no question of ing into
fitespondence with Gandhi so long as
lid not call off the Quit India policy!
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On June 1, 1943, the Viceroy gratefully
welcomed Jinnah's response as “‘a very
valuable advance.”

One of the bigger worries of the
British was NWEP. Here was a93%
Muslim province, which had a Congress
majority, and not a single League MLA!
It was a complete and standing refutation
of Jinnal’s claim as sole representative of
Muslims

More. The British  were planning to
put an Islamic and anti-Communist ring
around the soft under-belly of Russia. The
ring would have a gaping bold iniit. with
an anti-British and anti-League NWFP,
So the British and Mr. Jinnah decided
that NWEP must have a League ministry.
And for this, the ground must be prepar-
ed by buying Mullah support through
Khan Bahadurs. Khan Bahadur Kuli
Khan, who had been defeated by the p
Khudai Khidmal
1936 elections, was chosen as the chief
British agent. Writes Wali Khan: *“‘Cun-
gham wrote that Kuli Khan was being
used as the Mullah liaison. He was com-
missioned to work secretly with the tribal
Mullas and with others who ‘were not
prepared to come out in open support.”

Cunningham tecords that he persuaded
the leaders of the Jamiat-ul-Ulemase-
Sarhad to go to Waziristan and convince
Fagir Ipi that since the British were at
ainst the Germans and Italians,

gir should not”bothe= them becanse.

they were now fightiug against an infidel
its own way, was a

Jehad; therefore Fagic’s Jehad against them

How Jinnah and Cunningham
gave NWFP a League Ministry
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Buying Mullahs for
Rs. 10-15 a month !

should be called off. The British were con
ducting this intrigue with utmost secrecy.
Their enemies had no suspicion that such
documents and letters were being exchang-
ed. Cunningham was happy that Fagir’s
deputy, Mohammad Waris’, letter written
to Jamiat-ul-Ulema-e-Sarhad was friendly
in tone. It became evident that Fagir and
his companions had no inkling that the
Mullahs were accomplices of the British,
with explicit instructions from them.

The smaller Mullahs were handed to
the local Khans. Those slightly superior
in rank reported through the Deputy
Commissioners. The senior ones had a
direct line to the Governor, Cunningham,
who wrote : “] have not been in touch
with any of the smaller Mullahs myself.
Ihave done it through the following
agents with whom practically all my
connections have been verbal; as little is
put on.paper as possible. Ghulam Haider
of herpao village fold me that
thought he could work through about
nine or ten Mullahs, including those of
the following Razzar, Kot
Tarnab, Tongi, Utmanzai and Umorzai
later Prang and Charsadda

he

villages :

Cunningham wrote that he had asked
Ghulam Haider of Sherpao

meet each Mullah on an individual basis,
prepare him to serve the true cause of
Islam, give him forty-fifty rupees, tell him
that he will receive another visit after four
months, at which time be
prepared to bref the authorities about
his activities to-date. Cunningham said
that he had given Ghulam Haider of
Sherpao  village Rs. 600. The list of

he should

Mullahs from districts Naushera
Peshwar was handed to the Depif
Commissioner, Iskander Mirza.

The Mullahs of Swat, Baneer, Mardil
and Rani Zai were the responsibility i
the Prime Minister of Swat,
Cunningham wrote, *“The Wazir--A
(Hazrat Ali of Swat) sent me a list of
Mullahs through whom he is workiig
paying them average

(Continued on page 35)

He is an

nnah’s Arrogance—

r. Jinnah could be quite il
it s Simla Conference {8
in 1945, he refused to shake hand§
with Maulana Azad,  Congress
Pr

When, on Aug. 4, 1947, Mounid
batten reached Karachi to’ inaugis
rate Pakistan, Jinnah did not go ol
receive him at the airport. (Nor didf
liagat Ali.) Mountbatten was receid
ved only by the Governor of Sinds

At the inauguration of Pakistany
Jinnah wanted a_higher chair than§
Mountbatten’s. But the British toll
him that he w
nor-General of Pakistan_only afie
Mountbatten had administered {0
him the oath of office.
case, mtil Aug
was_ Viceroy, * and
cater than Governor-General,
Also Jinnah was arroganl
that when Iskander Mirza
him to show some consideraf
Muslim League leaders
helped in the creation of mmsun,
Jinnah replied : “Who told
hat the Musiim League brooghi
Pakistan ? I brought in
with my stenographer.””




Here is the second and concluding part
[ E.S. Nariman's, C.K. Daphtary Memo-
tial Lecture, ‘The Judiciary and the role
Wf the Path-finders’. — Editor
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KRISHNA IYER
and in turn inspired, a
new direction, for the
Supreme Court.  He helped to humanise
the legal system, particularly in the field
of criminal jurisprudence and jail reform.
e extended the frontiers of the account-
Gbility of the State and its instrumenta-
ltes in their ever expanding operations.
He often strayed from the beaten path of
e law, spinning his own “cocoon of
Jorisprudence”, inspired obviously by the
fict that, in dispensing justice, the answer
10 the question “what result is best for
e country?” is mot always consistent
With the response obtained by asking:
what is the decision according to law?”
He thus treated—and so inspired other
ludges to  treat—binding decisions as no
more than decisions applicable to the
ficts of that particular case. To attempt
i assessment of Justice Krishna Iyer
through his judgments (as in the case of
Subba Rao) would not, therefore, be a
wrrect approach.  This judge, more
fllan any other, by his wordy and some-
fimes seemingly irrelevant  judgments,
imade other judges think. Even when he
Was writing a majority judgement he
iade provision (as in a minority opinion)
lor the “brooding  spirit of the future”.

MR. JUSTICE was
fesponsible for,

tew thrust, a

ed on page 35)

Arrogance—,

ould be quite il
e Simla Conference
sed to shake hands
Azad, Congress |

ig. 4, 1947, Mount-
rachi to inaugu=
inah did not go to
¢ airport. (Nor did
ntbatten was recei- |
Sovernor of Sind.

ration of Pakistan, |
higher chair than
But the British told
Id_become Gover=
only after |
administered (0
Sffice. And, in any |
| 15, Mountbatten
nd Viceroy was
jernor-General.

was so arrogant
pder Mirza _asked

Ina scholarly article which I read
Sometime ago, the author asked : “What
B the point of a judgment including

told you
League brought  in
ught in  Pakistan
apher.”

While Subba Rao’s Chief Concern
Was ‘Fundamental Rights’,
Krishna lyer’s Was, The Poor

passages which
admission, irrelevant?”
was that there

are, on the judge’s own
And the answer
are diverse

audiences to
opinions are addressed.
Some judges (in their judgments) are con-
stantly explaining their decisions to litig-
ants, and their lawyers and to succeeding
generations of judges. So it is with the
judgments of Krishna lyer. He is also
the originator of introducing into judicial
pronouncements “The Purple Patch'™ it is
not uncommon with some judges; the
phrase is explained by Lord Denning in
his latest book

“When you are covering, as with a garment,

some weighty or important matter, you should

sew on one or two purple passages so,as to
attract the attention of those who are unfamiliar
with it.”

Krishna Iyer’s judgements are strewn
with “purple patches.”

He made no secret of the fact that a
judge must have a social philosophy and
a humane approach to legal problems.
Whilst Subba Rao had an obsessive con-
cern with fundamental rights, Krishna
Iyer’s concern was broader—for the poor

and down-trodden. He carved out a special
entrance for the destitute in the somewhat
formidable portals of the Supreme Court.
Along with Justice Bhagwati, he gave
a new dimension to Articles in the
Fundamental Rights Chapter which had
hardly received attention from the Court.
The rights against exploitation in Art. 23
were, under his stewardship, enforced and
given meaning
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How he handled Mrs. Gandhi’s
Election case in June 1975

And then he had that abiding quality
of a great Judg
still a junior puisne Ju dge in the Supreme
Court within two years of his elevation
from the Law Commission to the highest
court, he sat as a Vacation Judge during
the Summer Recess of 19 5. It was
destined to be the mosthistoric Summer
Recess of the Court. Mrs. Gandhi had
lost the Election Petition filed against her
by Mr. Raj Narain in the High Court of
Allababad. The High Court Judge ruled
that she had forfeited her seat in the Lok
Sabha sought an absolute stay of
the judgment and order.

be was fearless. Whilst

The matter was argued before Krishna
He could
have passed the buck, granting an
absolute stay till the reopening of the
Court when a Bench of three or five
Judges could have finally heard the appli-
cation. But he did not flinch. Sitting

and so taking the entire odium on

Tyer J., the Vacation Judge

self, he passed an Order granting only
consistent with the practice
of the Supreme Court in all election
appeals. He ordered that whilst Mrs.
Gandhi as Prime Minister could speak in
cither House of Parliament (so long as
she filled that office), Mrs. Gandhi as a
Member of Parliament could not vote nor
participate in proceedings of Lok Sabha,
since she had been unseated by the judge-
ment of a competent Court. Indias
constitutional historian Mr. H.M. Seervai
(otherwise critical of Justice Krishna Iyer

a limited st

and many of his judgements) has this to
say of the period just before the declara-
tion of Emergency : (what he called the

First Period) :

“Of the first period, the historian will S
that the Supreme Court moved towards its. il
hour, a day before the Proclamation of Eméis
gercy, when on 24th June, 1975, Krishna Ije
. following judicial precedents,
application made by Gandhi_ that (8
Allahabad High C Order, finding her gl
of corrupt election practices and disqualifying g
for six years, should be totally suspended. In {38
best traditions of the judiciary, Krishna Iyef
granted a conditional stay of the Order undét
appeal, although he had been remindzd by Béf
eminent Counsel Mr. N.A. Palkhivala, “that {18
nation was solidly behind (her) as Prime Mifi§
ter” and that “there were momentous conéd
quences, disastrous to. the country, if anylhifgs
less than the total suspension of the order undé
appeal were made.”

(Seervai’s Constitution of India Vol I
3rd Edn. P. 1018.)

Great praise indeed. But then Krishns
Iyer always did what he thought was
right; he never bothered about the cons
quences. In the Bangatore Water Suppl
case : (AIR 1978 SC 548) he deliberately
widened the spectrum of what was meant
by the word “industry” under Sec. 2
of the Industrial Disputes Act, 1947, ovets
ruling what the Supreme Court had¥
previously and almost consistently sl
about this word and its restricted inieed
pretation and carrying Six of his ol
leagues with him

When Parliament intervened to fes
define narrowly the term “‘industry” i
the Act, almost nullifying his judgementy
the amendment did not bother him. Hi§
approach in this, as in all matters,

August, 1987
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fiflucnced only by his own sense of the
In the same
contentions
Bl counsel for each of the parties he said :

Is it not obvious from these rival thought-
B3 that law is value-loaded, that social philoso-
BBl is an inarticulate interpretative tool ? T}
fliscapable in any school of jurisprudence.’”

4 to him was “value-loaded”

His social philosophy was more than
Biterpretative tool. It has been the
of almost all his judicial di
e founded this new ““school of juris-
idence,” which had many adherents. It
il h

A Judge carries with him biases and
Wiudices (his “‘can’t helps”, as Justice
es called them), so with Justice
blina Tyer and the adherents to his
Bhool of thought. He always believed that
Gsertion made in the United States
it the Supreme Court is a political
fittution applied as much to India as to
United States. aw without politics
Blind,” he once said; “politics without
W is deaf.

He would rather do justice, over-
flig law, than administer what he
fleved was injustice according to law.
et retirement he said ““the myth is that
Blits of law administer justice; the truth
it they are agents of injustice”. He
05 widely influenced some judges to do
filice according to their whim, in dis-
id of law. In this he did a_disservice
lie adherents of his school of thought.
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Concepts of justice vary and some judges
sitting in various Courts in the country,
without his legal acumen, a d not
endowed with his extra-ordinary faculty
for distinguishing right from the wrong,
have attempted to emulate him; they
bave failed.  Their
imitation have been disastrous—and the
blame is laid at the door of Krishna Iyer.

experiments in

Some have attempted to ape his style
and use four-syllable words where even
one would do. Such persons have failed to
realise that Krishna Iyer always regarded
language as a vehicle for ideas, and if the
manifold ideas in his fertile brain could
not be expressed in known language, he
bad no hesitation in inventing words
and adapting English words to suit what
he believd were Indian conditions. In
Shamsher Singh vs. State of Punjab (AIR
1974 SC at p. 229) a Bench of seven Judges
sat to consider whether the Constitution
contemplated the President and  the
Governor as real repositories of power or
whether they were like the British Crown:
(a point of topical interest these days).
Krishna Iyer J. in delivering a scparate
but concurring judgement posed the
question for decision thus

““Is Rashtrapati Bhawan--or Raj Bhawan--an
Indian Buckingham Palace, or a half-way house
between Buckingbam Palace and the White

House

Such imagery is inimitable, expected of
Krishna Iyer; intolerable and ludicrous

when attempted by someone ¢

People who attempt to ape him do not
realise that his penchant for long words

“It is a myth that courts
administer ‘justice’; they don’t.”’
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Here was a mixed package of Law,
Politics, Commonsense,

s not a studied exercise; for he spoke

in Court in the same vein.

I once heard him deliver judgment in
Court Room No. 3 (where he sat), an
oral judgment, ajudgment off-the-cuff”,

“RATIOCINATION * There were many
litigants and some lawyers present in
Court that day; half of them, Iam sure,
could not pronounce the word, and most
of the others did not know what it
meant.

Justice Krishna Tyer has been, and

a mixed package, packed to the brim
with a rich mixture of law, of politics. of
commonsense, but, above all, compassion.
When on the Bench he always reminded
me of Lord Denning's picturesque
simile of a Judge as rider. When counsel
urged the Master of the Roll
to invent a new head of police policy,
Lord Denning retorted : “I know that
Public Policy is an unruly horse but it is
for an able and competent judge to ride
that unruly horse and to bring it down
on the side of justice.” In the course of
his judicial career. Justice Krishna Iyer
gladly rode unruly horses; in fact he even
looked for them. He showed considerable
prowess (and ingenuity) in bringing them
down on the side of Justice. At times,
however, after the ride, the fences of the
law needed some mending. The new
sights he fixed for the highest Court are
epochal; the new trends of thought
remain, long after he has retired. In fact,
without ever having the authority of a
Chief Justice, he left his mark on the

not

Compassion

late seventies; they had a distinell
stamp : they were the judgments of {8
Krishna Iyer Era. But it is well (@
remember that it is at all

and sometimes dangerous,

person whom you cannot hope to be:
Dr. Johnson said,

absurdity of conduct arises

once.

So, there are dangers in
all that Krishna Iyer said and did |

In fact in the celebrated judgment
Mahendra Gill Vs. Election Conini
(1978) 1 SCC 447, Justice Tyer hims

judicial determinations.
book by Alan
Honour’)

Quoting from
Barth (‘Prophets
Justice Iyer accepted i
there and set out the following pase
with approval :

“A Court which yields to the populaf
thereby licenses itself to practise despotisy
there (an be no assurance that it will ol
another occassion, indulge its own will. Col

n fulfil their responsibility in a demodiE
society only o the extent that they sucsel
shaping their judgements by rational standa
are both impersond]

and rafional “standar

communicable.”

The above observation, said Krifl
Iyer, would equally apply to the El
Commission. If so, one may add, it
also apply to the superior courts infl
land, including the Supreme Courts

On the Court, Krishna Iyer
prolific writer, an indefatigable yod
(Cuntinued on page 31)
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The Role of Swadeshi in the
Freedom Movement

The Swadeshi movement was an essen~
il part of the movement for Swarajya.
Conrary 1o the general impression, it
fte-dates not only Gandhiji but even the
W05 movement for the annulment of the
WBirtition of Bengal.

Nor has Swadeshi become irrelevant
Wier Swarajya.

Here is a history of the role of Swadeshi
e national movement. —Ed.

HE IDEA OF SWADESHI is as old as
e national consciousness in modern
flidia, which is the result of the interac-
oo with the West. Tt is also a part and
fircel of the great Asian awakening,
Bihich restored national pride and confi-
fence in the national herita
fiid spurred men to shake off colonial-
Bin-cultural domination of the West
fBucated Indians came to realise the evil
fonsequences of alien rule. A section of
lie educated Indians was developing a
fenvile mentality in imitating the super-
liieltics of English life. British imperial-
im, not content with the destruction of
i old industries, was bent upon crippl-
ficven the infant cotton industry of
flombay. Lord Lytton reduced the import
Lancashire cloth to a paltry 5
Further discrimination n:
idian goods followed in 1886, when the
fiport duty on woven goods from
fincashire was reduced from 5 per cent to
B per cent—and simultancously imposed
fcoresponding excise duty of 3} per cent
all woven goods produced by Indian
es resulted in the
amounting to Rs.
Bl lakhs on imported geods—and an

crease of Rs.!1 lakhs in taxation on
Indian goods ! This injustice brought sharp
reaction in India. The movement for
Swadeshi acquired a momentum.

However, the first gleam of Swadeshi
may be seen as early as 1849, when
Gopalrao  Deshmukh of Pune, through
the columns of ‘Prabhakar,’” emphasised
the use of Indian goods in place of impor-
ted ones. In Bengal, the vogue for
Swadeshi may be traced back to 1867,
when Nabogapal Mitra, under the inspira-
tion of Raj Narain Bose, started organis-
inga Hindu Mela, which regularly met
once a year for nearly fourteen years. The
Press also actively started preaching the
gospel of

habit among people to purchase home-

Swadeshi—and _inculeating a

made goods, irrespective of their cost—as
the only way to arrest growing
poverty of the people. Gradually the
press all over India became more vocal,
and it exhorted the people to boycott
foreign goods, 1o use nothing but Indian
goods and to establish popular associa-
tions to achieve these ends

Thus the next stage in the growth of
the Swadeshi movement  was its propaga-
tion through recognised public associa-
tions of the countr At the Second
Industrial Conference, sponsored by the
Industrial Associdtion 0f Western India,

M.B. Namjoshi laid stress on the members

using Swadeshi goods instead of imported
ones, and o report to the annual confe-
rence the results of their efforts. In Bengal
the provincial conferences also popula-
rised the Swadeshi cult, particularly at
Burdwan in 1894, The Congress in its
1891 session reproved the delegates for
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From Hindu Mela & Namjoshi to
1896 bonfire of English cloth

not using Swadeshi. Murlidhar, the
Flag staffian Congress leader from the
Punjab, took the delegates to task for
buying imported goods and thus “‘batten-
ing on the hearts blood of your brethren.”

The Education Gazette of June 5,
1881, pleaded that the Indian products
“may be good or bad, but the people of
this country should feel for them as they
feel for their parents, whether good or
bad.”

The discriminatory tariff policy of
the Government of India provoked the
people and gave a fillip to the Swadeshi
Movement. The cry was raised against
Lancashire goods, and the movement
made a start in cutting across the bounds
of caste, creed and province. A new
realisation dawned upon the people that
instead of appeals, protests and resolu-
tions, some concrete steps should be taken
to stop all dealings with Manchester. As
the Bombay textile industry
victim of Manchester, naturally enough,
it became the focal point of protests,
though its zeal was shared by other parts
of the country. Boycott and Swaveshi
were preached to the people through
meetings, where people took pledyes not
to wear anything except Swadeshi.
‘Nyaya Sindhu’ of March 2, 1896, repor-
ted: “Huge bundles of English clothing
were thrown into Holi fire this year.”

was  the

Dadabhai Naoroji praised the popular
songs bidding the people to abjure im-
ported articles and use Swadeshi. ““The
songs are at present directed against

English wares, but they are also a natufil
and effective  preparation against olié
English things when the time comes,il§
the English in their blindness allow SUti
time to come

Bal Gangadhar Tilak played an i
portant part in boycotting English Wife§
for which he was inspired by Chili
which had boycotted American g0
most successfully jn protest against {i§
expulsion of the Chinese emigrants fiof
the United States.

Swadeshi in its early phase was ofli§

an cconomic movement, and it fell Sid
of becoming “a vigorous, all-India Al
all pervading movement”,
Moderates in the Congress were not bl
enough to adopt Swadeshi, for fear of
offending the government.
practicable The Bombay

and their friends were not

the total boyeott of foreign cloth til

said, about twenty years later
Times of India (March 11 & I8, I8
published two letters from D.E. Wal
mill-owner Joint-Secretary of the Cong
at the time, and its President in 190}
which, whilé lauding the Swadeshi mo
ment as an expression of patriotism, 48
clared it to be impracticable from I8
business point of view and even regi
it as *“a harmful diversion of pul
energy.” The people in general also oplé
for imported cloth for its cheapness i
quality.

The Partition of Bengal in 1905,
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in half, the twenty-year period fixed for
¥hoycott” by the Bom
fhe explosive anti-Partition movement
o Bengal invested Swadeshi and Boy-
it (an cconomic movement until then),
ith political flavour. The movement
fnaugurated formally on August 7, 1905,
for annuling the Partition, was convert-
el in 1919 by Gandhiji into the strugele
for freedom. The Swadeshi spirit, hallow-
féd by the supreme  sacrifices of Bengal,
ficame a weapon in the hands of an un-
fiimed people to fight the mighty British
fmpire. The Swadeshi spirit and boycott
et reinforced by ‘Bande Mataram’,
fihich, like ‘Har Har Mabadev' of the

, became a clarion call to

mill-owners.

purchase and sale o

chanting of ‘Bande

were declared  punishable

the government. Bande

“a Manatra, a power,

b inspiration, a revelation, a truth”,
jfote Bipin Chandra Pal.

The famous trio, Bal, Lal, Pal, who
fer formed the ‘extremist’ group in the

igress, at the Calcutta session of the
Congress in 1906, put forward four
gsolutions—Self-Government on  colo-
il lines, National Education, Swadeshi,
fid Boycott of foreign goods—which
e passed due to the tact and mode-

B opposition of the ‘moderates’. But
fthe next session  of the Congress a
it the “Moderates’ excluded the re-
lition passed at the Calcutta session

0 National Education and

extre-
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mists took exception, end tne session
ended amidst uproar and fisticuffs. The
‘Extremists’ walked out of the Congress.

The anti-Partition movement, which
centred round Boycott and Swadeshi,
ushered in real nationalism with self-
help, non-cooperation and passive
resistance, and very soon it chang
its character to Swadeshi  move-
ment with an all-India  complex-
ion. The mnon-cooperation and passive
resistance were for the first time preached
by Arabindo Ghosh through his paper,
‘Bande Mataram’, to bring an unpreceden-
ted revolution through moral force and
peaceful pressure. The meaning, concept
and content of Swadeshi were also chang-
ed radically. Beginning as an economic
concept, it became a synonym for everyth-
ing Indian, and it literally meant return-
ing to our culture and heritage, our
genius and tradition, our own cthos and
institutions, after a proper re-appraisal
of their value in the light of modern
circumstances. The preference of Indians
for foreign wares changed overnight.
They now made a bonfire of western
clothes. The Manchester trade suffered
a serious decline.

London ‘Evening News® reported on
Sept. 1, 1905, that the Marwari Chamber
of Commerce had cabled to Manchester
Chamber of Commer: The sale of
Manchester goods has practically stop-
ped. We shall be ruined and shall not be
able to make future_contracts unless the
Secretary of State withdraws the Parti-
tion, and the boycott ceases. The matter

Surat Congress split up

on the issue of Swadeshi !
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Many Muslims supported
Swadeshi Movement

is very urgent. Unless the cause is re-
moved in three or four days by counter-
manding the Partition, goods for the
Puja will remain unsold and the ‘Lucky
Day Sales’ impossible.
Please help us.”

will became

According to Bipin Chandra Pal, the
Swadeshi movement had contributed two
economiic self-reliance and em-
He wanted to
cater to
fields of
educa-
people

inde-
Similar

things,
ployment for the people.
make it more broad-based, to
the needs of the people in all

activity—industrial, commercial
tional and social, so that the
lived a decent and honourable life
pendent of government service.
made for the village:

so

efforts were to be
also. Pal spoke of a new mass orienta-
tion of the Swadeshi Movement, empha-
sising its many dimensions. It presented
asolution to “the starving, the naked,
the patient and 300 mil-
lions of our people and in we see
a new potency which we never had felt
before”. He stood for protection for
nascent industries, and in the
that, “Boycott to us is Protectio
was for the organisation of rural
into economically and politically se
reliant communities.

long-suffering

them

absence of
”. He
masses

The all-embracing effects of Swadeshi
were felt by the Moderates also. Gokhale,
the leader of the Moderates, praised the
Swadeshi spirit for its deeper, passionate,
fervent and all-embracing love of the
motherland, and prophetically said that
“in this movement we shall ultmately
find the true salvation of India.””

The Swadeshi movement had
interesting features. The movemeily
asequel to the partition of Beng
Hindu-Muslim lines. And there
frequent Hindu-Muslim riots duringh
agitation, at the instig
ment. So much that C.J0!
M.P., sorely agerieved at the open
sanship of the British officials
the Muslims during the Swadeshi
ment, put the question straight il
House of Commons : *“May I ask
when has it become a part of the/pd
of the Pritish people to sub-divid
possessions to the relig
tenets of their inhabitants?”

so,

according

Yet the Muslims also worked
partition and for the Swadeshi Movel
At a big meeting of the Muslims on
1905, at Raja Bazar, with AN
Rasul in the Chair, three Resolutions
passed (i) recording the protest off
Mohammedan community againsth
current report to the effect that theyl
10 sympathy with the measures 4l
by the Hindus for the amelioratiof
their country and offering their SUpR
to the Hindus; (i1) expressing their @
10 join the Hindus, not merely regil
the partition, but also other maters
also (i) expressing their strong SUf
in favour of the use of Swadeshi ool

At is.generally believed thal
Mohammedans as a community ¥
favour of the partition of Bengal,
the congress was deadly opposed
But Nawab Syed Amir Hussain, Seod
of the Central National Mohami
(Continued on page 21)
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Egypt’'s Search for its old Indian,
Pagan, Pharaonic Soul

Received from Mr. Dennis Walker, Ph.D. candidate in *Arab Nationalism’, 35, Rosamond Street,
Balaclava, Melbournie-3183, Australia, through the good offices of Shri Ram Swarup.

JIAWFIQ AL-HAKIM (b. 1899, Alexan-
ia, Ecypt) is regarded as the most
li. He was born into a well-to-do
fimily, his mother being of aristocratic
furkish descent. After studying Law at
Ciiro University, he went to Paris to con-
e bis legal studics but instead devoted
st of his time to the theatre. On his
iélurn to Egypt four years later (1930), he
Porked for the Ministry of Justice in a
firal arca as well as for the Ministry of
fEducation in Cairo. However, in 1936,
e resigned to devote himself entirely to
riting

Afier some early efforts, Tawfig al-
Hakim won fame as a dramatist with his
iThe Feople of the Cave” (1933), osten-
Sbly based on the story of the Seven
leepers of Ephesus but actually studying
fan's struggle against time. This intro-
Uiced a series of “dramas of ldeas,” or
0l “symbolism”. They include Shahrazad
019349), based on The Thousand and One

al-Malik  Udib (1939); “King
Pimaliyun (1942; “Pygmal-
Sulayman al-Hakim (1934;

¥Solomon  the Wise.)”

For all his career as a radical intellect-
al and playwright, Tawfiq identified and
fesisted two forces as threats to Egypts
Spiritual potential : (a) The West's imperi-
flism and atheistic materialism, and (b)
lbe narrowly neo-traditional Arab-Islamic

Tawfiq denounced both West-

Islam-sustained  Arabist

s aimed (0 eliminate Muslim

Beypt’s distinctive identity, defined by its

Pigan Pharaonic golden age. When al-
MHakim matured as 4 thinker in the 19

several Theosophical Lodges were active in
Egypt. The writings of Madame Helena
Blavatsky strongly impressed upon Tawfig
al-Hakim and like-minded Pharaonist libe-
ral writers such as Muhammad Husayn
Haykal that Hinduism and ancient
Egyptian Pharaonic “paganism” were
congruent and had been in contact. As
they again seized ancient Pharaonic reli-
gion to supplement modern secular
Westera thought and the Arab-Islamic
tradition’s insights, Muslim E;

to seize Hinduism and the Gita at the
very same time, so Tawfiq and Haykal
argued in 1920s.

ptians had

It was not that al-Hakim ever strove
to climinate Islam from Egypt or even
from Egyptian public life. Islam he saw
as an element inwoven into Egypt’s his-
tory that—like Arabism—should have an
honoured place. But al-Hakim criticized
fundamentalist Muslim forces in Egypt as
wanting to make a totalistic _interpreta-
tion of Islam, excluding any other sources
of spirituality or culture or identity for
the Egyptian nation.

We now turn to a Hinduism-influenced
open letter to the Westernizing-Arabist
Dr. Taha Husayn that Tawfiq al-Hakim
published in a/-Risalah_magazine (Cairo)
for 1 June 1933 (pp, 5—8). The letter of
Tawfiq was a striking critique of perceived
“materialism” in both western civili-
zation and in classical Arab civilization.

In the Pharaonist writings in the
1930s and 1940s, Tawfiq al-Hakim
vocally urged Egyptians to distinguish
indigenous organically Pharaonic elements
linked to India from Arab elements. He
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The Arab civilization was weak
on thinking and spirituality

wanted Egyptians to climinate many Arab
elements from current culture while
nourishing the Pharaonic elements. To
what extent were these pharaonic. stances
directed to cut out Islam or some aspects
of Islam from Egyptian life ? This period
was not one in which it would be easy for
Arab Egyptian liberal intellectuals to
publicly criticize Islam. The 1920 had
been a period for fresh discussion. But
the 1930s were a period of Islamic react-

ainst the West even among the very
Westernising-educated Muslim Egyptians
for whom al-Hakim and similar intellect-
vals wrote. In this climate, it would have
needed great courage to discuss issues of
Islam and Egyptian national identity
frankly. On any interpretation of Middle
East history, the Arabs had been Islam’s
initial custodians and in at least some
periods of their history they had tried to
live Islam completely even if in other
periods Islam had sat lightly on them.
When Al-Hakim criticized classical Arabs

“materiajist” and lacking in spirituality
he definitely implied that Islam was in-
complete or inadequate by itself for the
“piritual” Egypt. Thus, he wrote: “It
js impossible then for us to see inall of
Arab civilization any inclination to matters
of the spirit and thought in the sense in
which Egypt and India understand the
two words spirit and thought.”

It was implicit, then, that al-Hakim’s
criticisms of the classical Arab elements
in Egypt entailed some rejection of insular
interpretations of Islam

The main weight of Tawfiq al-Hakim’s
drive in 1933 to articulate a spiritual
pational Egyptian identity was directed
against the traditional Arab and Muslim

clements. He only wanted to elii
some of these elements from Egypl
culture while keeping other Arab
Muslim elements that he felt could
synthesized with enriching Indic 4
Pharaonic spirituality.  But he alsod
lied Indic and Pharaonic. spiritualifii
mount a constructive critique of Wl
civilization, much of which, he chat
was dogged by a materialism that
parallel to the materialism ~that he
ceived limited the classical Arab Seil
bility

The totalistic Westernizers suc
Taha Husayn wanted to implant
the
ancient Greeks who launched
civilization. In his
Dr. Taha Husayn Tawfiq, al-Hakin
treated Western civilization as a coill§
nuity, the base of which was. the andh
Greeks. Accordingly, Tawf
most of his analysis to the ancient G
literature and religion. His toné
gencrous and sympathetic as he appll
the sharp compassion of the healing Sif
geon to the sick We: civilizall
Al-Hakim no more wanted to climi
Western culture in tofo than he did di
cal Arab calture, but he was intentl
discover where early Western civilizili
had taken its wrong turning toWdi
materialism after its reasonably promil
beginnings. The important thing 8
Arabic-speaking Egyptians was that (i
accept from the West only those ol
creative elements that fitted in with I8
and Pharaonic spirituality. They bl
cut away any materialistic Western é§
ments they had borrowed, ruthlessly:

For
culture h:
a develop
because V
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For al-Hakim, early Greek life and
Bilture had the potential to develop into
fideveloped spiritual  civilization later
ecause Vedic insights coming from India

only later Greek

fitcction that made much of it dessicat-
g and sterile. Examination of the art
Bfthe Parthenon brought home to al-
fHakin that some Greeks had caught
linpses of the spiritual dimension be-
ond, but binding the material world.
Mhis intermittent  spirituality in the
iicrally materialistic Greek culture was
0ssible because some Greeks had origi-
flied from India or from near India. *'I
Semembered that the origin of the Greeks
from two different races: the

ifeers coming from Asia known to the
ians as ‘the Yavanas’ and the martial
down from

Bl North (of Europe). The God of the
Dionysius and that of the

{1 Apollo, the symbol of individualism
fid consciousness, the struggle between
Spifit and Matter, between heart and
flellect, between ecstasy and conscious.
fess. 1 fancy Dionysius to be an Asiatic
{God undoubiedly brought from India. He
ame tue source of Music among the
iecks. Thus 1 appreciated the failure of

Biind because the Arabs are the nation of
lidividualism  and

jrstand the early Greek and Indic
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ability to achieve unity with “the spiritual
light” (al-nur —al-ruhi) binding man and
nature and all time-periods together.

How could Arab-speaking Egyptians
(whom al-Hakim would define as essen-
tially non-Arab) recover union with the
spirituality in nature ? Western civiliza-
tion offered no guidelines  because
Socrates’ logic had dest
Homer articulated, extinguishing real
Greek civilization and engulfiihg the
world in materialism. The best hope for
Egyptians, Tawfiq al-Hakim mused in
1933, was for them to seize the guidance
offered by Rabindranath Tagore, the thin-
ker who now most highlighted the unity
between Man and Nature, the possibility
of raising the barrier separating private
individuals from - the larger life that
transcended the Universe, Tagore had
hammered far beyond India the “love”
that can bind man to seemingly inani
mate things.

Tawfiq al-Hakim closed this 1933
article with the observation that “Greece,
then, did not succeed to the required
extent in synthesizing Spirit with the
Material. Can Egypt hope to reach this
aim one day ?” The Greek failure had
sentenced all succeeding Western civili-
zation to sterility : rationalistic percep-
tion had overcome the spiritual sensibi-
lity and “all modern Europe inherited
from Greece were her treasures of intellect
and logic,” leaving the spir&ual treasures
of Dionysius shrouded in darkness.

Hence the spiritual incapacity of
Europe from the Greeks to the predatory
twentieth-century  imperialists.  Al-

European civilization impoverished
by the neglect of Dionysius
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Egypt can rediscover itself
only with the help of India

Hakim in 1933 placed the responsibility
for articulating a spiritual alternative on
neo-Pharaonist (although Arabic-speak-
ing) Egypt and Hindu India. Common
Easternism was the frame for Egypt, and
India’s collaboration to save humanity-
However, al-Hakim did not take into
much account either Islam or Europe-
based Christianity as contributors to a
new spirituality.

Tawfiq al-Hakim’s 1933 critique of
the materialist West was reminiscent of
the Cairo-based “‘Eastern League” and
Muhammad Husayn Haykal’s al-Siyasah
in the 1920s. The Eastern League and
al-Siyasah then had tried to synthesize
Vedic teachings and almost lost Pharaonic
spirituality as the answer to the plight in
which the West had placed humanity.

Al-Hakis's speculation that the Ioni-
an Greeks could have been 2 conduit
through which Vedic spirituality could
have reached Greece prior to its forma

tive period is not to be dismissed out of
hand. Iranian inseriptions had used
the word “Yauna” in reference to be the
Ionians of Asia Minor, whom Cyrus the
Great conquered in 545 B.C. lIts carli-
est attested use in India is by the gram-
marian panini (c. 5th century B.C.) in the
form of Yavanani, taken by commenta-
tors to mean Greek script. At that date
the name probably referred to communi-
ties of Greeks settled in the Eastern
Achaemenidian provinces. Thus, Greek-
speaking lonians based in West Asia were
in direct contact with Sanskritic India
from which they could take religi-
ous elements and transmit them to the
Greek heartlands. India probably was the

source of the areas of creativity to Gretl
civilization and subsequent Europei
thought and civilization descended (oM

Clearly, though Greek thought ealf
took a wrong turning  that doomed mostH
of Western civilization to materialil
obtuseness in spiritual ‘matters, al-Hakii
argued in 1933 that the classical Musliii§
Arabs had similarly suffocated EgyplsH
Pharaonic spirituality for a millenniui
“No doubt the Egyptian mentality B
in some measure changed today..Bil
how far has it changed, that is the topi}
on...Until a little before the
of the present generatiofy
intellectual concerns in Egypt were co
and restricted to imitation
tradition—the  imitation
thought and restriction to
We were in a kind of coma
unfeeling of our real being
never perceive ourselves, all we saw Wil8
the long departed Arabs...we had 10
sense that we existed, all we could fel
was their existence .. The word “I” usél
to be unknown to the Egyptian mind, and
the concept of Egyptian personality had
yet to be born. Then came the el
generation and bebold it spearheaded @
new spirit and a new course of action, N
more was literature the mere observani
of a tradition or continuance of anciei
Arabic literature in its spirit and fo
but instead an act of original creativity/8

By 1933, then, the ptians, led by
thinkers like Tawfiq  al-Hakim, hal
detonated their struggle for cultural aad
spiritual liberation  from the Al
conquest. i
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Sociation, in his reply, of Feb. 1904
Bithe query of the government, expressed
fieopposition of his association to the
Bitttion and said that it was neither
ficessary nor desirable. If, however, the
was determined upon it, the

ovince of Assam might be reconstituted
Bith a Lt. Governor and a Council. On
other hand, a predominantly Hindu
isociation, called the Jorhat Sarbajanik
bha, with Shri Jagan Nath Barua as
Biesident, welcomed the idea of partition
4, “provided that certain

mese were definitely

The fourth feature was the  birth of
” in India. A new spirit
sertion permes

age of prayers and
s and now they were
backed up by the will of the people. The
fess fearlessly exercised its right 1o the
ffeedom of cxpression, and the people
itover their fear of the British and the

tish jails

The Swadeshi movement abated, after
e partition of Bengal was annulled in

feadership. 1dcas underlying the move-
Bent were alrcady there; he  invested
fem with a spiritual fervour. Swadeshi

cies of the
SWadeshi movement.  For Gandhiji,
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Swadeshi was not a political expediency
or a punitive measure, but a way of life,
embracing the total personality of Indians
as a whole. From the economic point of
view, it meant economic self-reliance,
economic independence and reconstruc-
tion of rural economy. For Gandhiji,
India was its villages; therefore his first
priority was the village—and the Kisan.

R.C. Mujumdar, historian, writes that
the confidential Reports of Intelligence
Branch of the Government of India cl-
carly reveal that the ‘“Boycott-Swadeshi
Movement assumed an all-India character
even towards the end of 1905. The pro-
gress of the movement was reported from
23 districts in the United Provinces, 1S
towns in the Central Provinces, 24 towns
in the Punjab and 13 districts in the
Madras Presidency. The movement bore
special fruit in the Bombay Presidency.
Here the tremendous increase in the
demand of indigenous goods gave good
impetus to production in the Mills of
Bombay and Ahmedabad, which sold
about 1,00,000 bales of cloth to the
Calcutta merchants during August-Sep-
tember, 1905—a sale six months ahead !
Like B.C. Pal, Gandhiji also believed
that “there can be no economics ~ divore-
ed from politics.”

Gandhiji named his Swadeshi move-
ment as the “New Swadeshi”. The new
Swadeshi derived sustenance from the
“old Swadeshi’; ideas were the same, only
the emphasis was.different. R.C. Majum-
dar wrote : *“Not only this, but a closer
cxamination will reveal the fact that

Economics cannot be
divorced from Politics
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e cities and also the outside world
e corner-stone of Khadi men-
ity was Charkha, which was “‘a plea
for recognising the dignity of labour’

@nd creating work opportunity for the
uiemployed, through spinning and wea-
fiog. The Khadi mentality meant decen
ialisation of the production and distri-
bution of the necessaries of life through
i villages, which would save the ex-
litation of 7,00,000 villages by Britain.
I 1918, India spent Rs. 60 crores on
fimporting foreign cloth. Gandhiji de-
flored this waste, as the Indian weaver
iid spinner had been deprived of that
mount every year without giving him any
ork in exchange and it was also an
fBlirage against a people, 1/10 of whom

Bt cruclly half-starved, and the majority,

flider-fed. He wanted to utilise hand-
Weaving and  hand-spinning as  supple-
fientary employment, and to be practiced
ot only in the off-season of agricul-
lire but during the season also. For him
flie bread and freedom of the masses
fid priority over political freedom. “The

il reform that India needs is Swadeshi.
fllc immediate problem before us is not
flow to run the government but how to
flted and clothe ourselves.”

The revival of the cottage industry
s a must for India. It would provide
fmployment for the masses. Gandhiji’s
ioblem was to find work for the people,
0 (0 lessen the pressure on land, and
fife wages to the people to purchase their
liling. The people have been forced to
Become lazy, and thus formed a habit of
i-Our real malady”, Gandhiji once said,
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“lis not destitution but laziness.” Noth-
ing, he thought, more corroding than
enforced laziness. Spinning is the easiest,
cheapest and the best. Gandhiji said that
the way to Swaraj lies through Swadeshi.
He was not against machinery as such,
ut against the craze for machinery
which meant retrenchment of labour. It
is in this context that he recommended
Charkha, to enable people to carn their
living and be self-reliant. For America,
he thought, machinery was useful as there
was shortage of manpower, but not for
developing countries where employment
is the main problem. He was in favour
of using scientific research for more pr
duction.

Tw his critics, Gandhiji replied in 1920;
se friends forget that the needle

ha\ not given place to sewing-machine,
nor has the hand lost its cunning, in spite
of the type-writer. There is not the
slightest reason why hand spinning
not co-exist with the spinning m
as the domestic kitchen co-exists with
hotels ... The spinning wheel is national
necessity.”

In 1921 Tagore also questioncd the
relevance of “spinning-weaving”. Gandhi-
ji’s reply, one of the classic examples of
retorts in the history of journalism. was :
“Hunger is the argument thatiis driving
India to spinning wheel.” He added: “To
a people famished and idle, the only
acceptable form in which God can appear
is work and promise of food. Those who
ate without work were thieves. Eighty
per cent of India are compulsorily thieve

Lord Irwin said ‘Buy Indian’
is as legitimate as ‘Buy British’
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half the year. Is it any wonder if India
has become one vast prison. I do_indeed
ask the poet to spin the wheel as a
sacrament.” (Young India, Oct. 13, 192)

During the Civil Disobedience move-
ment of 1932, the government issued an
ordinance on boycott of British good
A brilliant idea emanated from a dele-
gate at the Karachi session of the Cong®
ross that instead of ‘boycott” they would
say “Buy Indian”, “Ifin Great Britain
“Buy British’ could be the watchword
and hallmark, duly stamped by Royalty,
of every patriot......how could in India
to ‘Buy Indian’ become a punishable
offence?”

Tronically enough the same sentiments
were expressed < by Lord lrwin, the
Governor-General of ~ India, before
relinquishing his office in 1931, He said
“No_ Englishman can, without being
false to his own history and to his own
pledges, take objection, to the pursuit bY
thers, of their own political liberiy. Not
ave I ever been able to appreciate the
attitude of those who might  be the first

Manthan

in Great Britain to exhort their counfi
men only to buy British goods, and ¥
rd Swadeshi as something disloyal

The Swadeshi movement playell
historic role in the national evolution
India, It was a social, moral and ecOf§
mic_revolution. Swadeshi gave [l
self-confidence by eliminating its
ity complex and tendency of dependelig
1t prepared the Indians to take the IE8
of administration into_their
Gandhiji had  prophetically
Swadeshi is Swaraj.” On the one sidéil
saved India from being a poor imitdl
of the West, on the other it reinvigor
itself by absorbing western learning 4§
culture. The resurgence of
spirit_awakened a_new
Indians and gave rise to @
and a new feeling
Gandhiji was able to transform the
gress from a middle-class associationil
a mass organisation with the
Swadeshi, And it is this Swadeshi (8
we have given the go-by in “Swatantil

Bharat!

Swadeshi is Hindu Economics—— |

One of the best ways of preventing manufacture of goods_without
hon dumping them on other people. upsetting economic_ equil:
ofoduting unemployment among thom. 13 to inculcate in
o ael of Swadeshi, i.e., their duty to purchase goods produced
oS reiahbours rather thamgoods imported from else=

where.
Yo make the village or a group of fo
for their primary requirements so tha,
people can be adequately met by the

e that in economic reconstruction= the aim should_ be

r or five villages, self-sufficient
¢ 51l the fundamental wants of e
group itself:

Our land is eminently suited to putting into effect this principle of
wad s

Swadeshi in consumption, as
spirit of Hinduism in the economic 3

only an expression of the:
phere.

—Bharatan Kumarappa,

August, 1
(
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His record of judgments in sheer number
Surpasses Subba Rao’s statistics. Subba
Rao in his term of little over eight years
i the Supreme Court, participated in
over five hundred and sixty cases in which
Judgments were delivered, himself deliver-
ing two hundred and fifty-four.
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During a shorter period on the
Bench—a little over seven years, from
July 1973 to November 1930—Justice
P Krishna Iyer participated in over seven
Hundred cases in which decisions were
fendered, he himself delivering judgments
i more than half of them. His preoccu-
pation for quick justice is apparent in his
fudgments. So is his helplessness at the
Court not being able to administer it.
Hestarts a judgment in one case with
these words (AIR 1974 SC 396):

seems

“Instant or carly justice b

radical reorientation and systematic
anges in the judicial process as these two ap-
el which have survived two decades, sadly
llstrate.”

Chief Justice Latham of the High
Court of Australia used to say that when
e dicd they would find engraved on his
Beart “Scction 92"—the trade and
eommerce clause of the Australian Con-
Stitution, which inpired so much litigation
at the time—all of which he had to deal
With during his tenure as Chief Justice.
SDespite the fantastic progress of science
in the last decade, there has not yet been
fvented a cardiac machine which can
fead what is written in the heart of
Justice Krishna Iyer. If there was such
n instument, one would read the words :

hics——

goods without
conomicequill
| to inculcate in.
00cis produced,
orted from else~
 aim should be
, self-sufficient
| wants of the

this principle of
Xpression of the

atan Kumarappa
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‘Legal Aid- In fact, it was he who gave
new meaning to the Equality Clause in
our Constitution. He ruled that if an
indigent litigant is not afforded legal aid,
he does not receive the equal protection
of the law guaranteed by Art. 14,

When Justice William Douglas retired
from the Supreme Court of the United
States after a long tenure spread over
three decades, a widely-read magazine
described him as “the Court’s grandest
maverick, a rugged liberal witha shock
of white hair, piercing eyes and a
luminous regard for the First Amend-
ment”. For “First Amendment” substi-
tute “Poor”—and the description aptly
fits Justice Krishna lIyer.

It has been sometimes said that Subba
Rao (and the Subba Rao Court) was
“rightist’, and Justice Krishna Iyer and
those of his school ‘leftist’. This is a
superficial characterisation indulged in by
those who are obsessed with isms;
besides, it is not even correct. Each had
many similar and abiding major concerns.

The abiding concerns of Subba Rao
Court were underlined (coincidentally but
characteristically) by the first and the
last case in which he presided as Chief
Justice :

In the first, he firmly upheld the
independence of the judiciary by ensuring
that the subordinate judiciary should not
be selected except from the judicial ser-
vice. In Chandramohan Vs. State of U.P.
AIR 1966 SC 1987, it was contended for

Engraved on his heart would be
the words—

“LEGAL AID”
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The Great Passport Case
of Satwant Singh

the State that it was permissible to the
Governor (which meant the State Govern-
ment) to frame rules permitting recruit-
ment of judges in the subordinate judici
ary not only from adyocates and pleaders
of requisite but also from
members of the exccutive departments
discharging revenue  or  ministerial
functions. Chief Subba Rao (in
this first case in presided as
Chief Justice) rejected the contention
saying that it was unreasonable to

bute to the makers of the

who had so completely provided for the
independence of the judiciary, an inten-
tion to destroy it by an indirect method.
“What can be more deleterious for the
g20od name of the judiciary than to permit
at the level of district judges, recruitment
from the executive department?”, he
asked, and then declared the Uttar
Pradesh Higher Judicial Service Rules
framed by the State Government as  un-
constitutional.

standing

Justice
which he

Likewis in the
celebrated Judges Transfer Case (Union of
India Vs. Sakalchand = AIR 1977 SC 2329)
whilst accepting that a judge of the High
Court may be transferred from one High
Court to another in interest,
read into the constitutional provision of
prior consultation with the Chief Jus
a virtual mandate : although the opinion
of the Chief Justice of India on the pro-
lly bind-
ing, it would have to be accepted, he said
because, otherwise, without the consent of
the Head of the judiciary, an order of
transfer of a High Court judge would be

, Justice Krishna Iyer

the public

posal to transfer may not be I

per se arbitrary and capricious.

So much for their common cond
the independence of the judiciary.

In the field of human rights and i
too, their
influence was considerable), the viewsH

doms, view (and  since (i
their colleagues and judges who suce
ed them, were not dis-similar.

In the last case over which he prll
ed, Satwant Singh vs. Assistant Pasia
Officer : AIR 1967 SC 1836 (knownil
‘the Passport Case), Chief Justice Sul
Rao, speaking for a majority in a Beil
of five judges, held that the exprei
“personal liberty” in Art. 21 encomp
a right of locomotion, of the right
1 abroad. Every person livioghl
lndm has a fundamental right to i
even outside India, and the refusil
government to give him a passport Wil
out a valid law prescribiu
restrictions, was held to be an ¢
exercise of executive power, infringing il
Equality Clause of the Constitution:
this last case, Subba Rao had inf
(with the help of Justices Shelat, i
Vaidialingam who concurred - with il
converted his minority opinion in Kl
singh 35 the declared law of the land:

There is a sequel to this decis
which concerns Justice Krishna Iyer:

Soon after the decision in Saiid
Singh in 1966, Parliament passed
Passports Act 1967, regulating condil
for the grant and refusal of a paspa
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and also providing for conditions on The words “‘procedure according to
Which a passport, once granted, could be law” in Art. 21, he said, means fair, not
impounded. Ten years later, in 1977, formal procedure. In characteristic
When the Janata Government was in Krishna Iyer prose, he said “no passport
ower and the Congress (1) in Opposition, officer shall be a mini Caesar, nora
Mrs. Mancka Gandhi (daughter-in-law of  minister an incarnate Caesar, in a_system
Mis. Indira Gandhi) received a peremp- where the Rule of Law reigns supreme.”
fory letter from the Regional Passport Under our constitutional order, he went !
Officer of Delhi, informing her that it had on, “the price of daring dissent should

feen decided by the Government of India not be passport forfeit.” The laconic |
1o impound her passport, under the pro- order of the Passport Officer, and his
Nisions of the Passport Act, and in the refusal to give reasons, were characterised
public interest called upon her to as unfair and violative of Natural Justice
Surrender it. She asked for the reasons by all judges, including Justice Krishna
BWhy this decision was taken. The reply Iyer. In what he described as his con-
as that the government had decided in  cluding caveat, he said that we should
lhe interest of the general public not to mever forget the watershed between a
furnish her a copy of the statement of ‘police state’ and ‘people’s raj’. The
feasons for making of the order. Maneka  policing of a people’s right on exit or
Gandhi moved a petition in the Supreme entry, he said, was fraught with grave
Gourt; and pending hearing of the peril to liberty

Pelition she was required to deposit her

n, of the right (o issport with the Registrar of the Court So you see this abiding concern for
ry person living inl Justice Krishna Iyer was on the Bench of human freedom too was no different than
atal right to travel Seven Judges which heard the petition. ~Subba Rao’s.

and the refusal of Concurring with Justice Bhagwati who

im a passport  with® Wiote the judgment in what is regarded My regret, however, is that after all
escribiug reasonable by many as a landmark case (4/R 1978 this, Krishna Iyer agreed with the
to be an arbitragy 8C 597), Justice Krishna lyer in a separate majority in virtually denying relief to
power, infringing the pinion endorsed the majority judgment Mrs. Maneka Gandhi. Only one judge
the Constitution. In b Subba Rao in Sawan: Singh’s Case in this Bench of seven (Chicf Justice Beg)
a Rao had in fact lecided way back in 1966. He showed his  said that the order of government had to
ustices  Shelat, and ibiding concern for human freedoms and b quashed as this was the only logical
oncurred with him) lbuman rights. He held, along with the conclusion to the unanimous finding of
y opinion in Kharak= Court, that the right to travel abroad was  the Court that the order was contrary to
law of the land. B0t only encompassed in the right to natural justice and violative of Art. 21
fliberty under Art. 21, but that right But the other judges including Justice
el to this decision fould only be denied if the procedural Krishna Iyer (as also two future Chie
e Krishna Iyer. v, which governed its exercise, was Justices of India—Justice Chandrachud
fair. and Justice Bhagwati), after holding that
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and also providing for conditions on
which a passport, once granted, could be
impounded. Ten years later, in 1977,
when the janata Government was in
power and the Congress (I) in Opposition,
Mis. Mancka Gandhi (daughter-in-law of
Mss. Indira Gandhi) received a peremp-
fory letter from the Regional Passport
Officer of Delhi, informing her that it had
leen decided by the Government of India
o impound her passport, under the pro-
isions of the Passport Act, and in the
public interest called upon her to
surrender it. She asked for the reasons
why this decision was taken. The reply
was that the government had decided in
the interest of the general public not to
furnish her a copy of the statement of
reasons for making of the order. Maneka
Gandhi moved a petition in the Supreme.
Court; and pending hearing of the
petition she was required to  deposit her
passport with the Registrar of the Court.
Justice Krishna Iyer was on the Bench of
seven Judges which heard the petition.
Concurring with Justice Bhagwati who
wrote the judgment in what is regarded
by many asa landmark case (4ZR 1978
5C 597), Justice Krishna Iyer in a separate
opinion endorsed the majority judgment
of Subba Rao in Satwan: Singh's Case
decided way back in 1966. He showed his
abiding concern for human freedoms and
buman rights. He held, along with the
Court, that the right to travel abroad was
not only encompassed in the right to
liberty under Art. 21, but that right
could only be denied if the procedural
law, which governed its exercise, was
fair.
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The words “‘procedure according to
law” in Art. 21, he said, means  fair, not
formal procedure. In  characteristic
Krishna Iyer prose, he said “no passport
officer shall be a mini
minister an incarnate Caesar, ina_ system
where the Rule of Law reigns supreme.”
Under our constitutional order, he went
on, “the price of daring dissent should
not be passport forfeit.” The lacol
order of the Passport Officer, and his
refusal to give reasons, were characterised
as unfair and violative of Natural Justice
by all judges, including Justice Krishna
Iyer. In what he described as his con-
cluding caveat, he said that we should

never forget the watershed between a
te’ and ‘people’s raj’. The
policing of a_people’s right on exit or
entry, he said, was fraught with grave
peril to liberty

‘police s

So you see this abiding concern for
human freedom too was no different than
Subba Rao’s.

My regret, however, is that after all
this, Krishna lIyer agreed with the
majority in virtvally denying relief to
trs. Maneka Gandhi. Only ome judge
in this Bench of seven (Chief Justice Beg)
said that the ‘order of government had to
be quashed as this was the only logical
conclusion to the unanimous finding of
the Court that the order was contrary to
natural justice and Violative of Art. 21
But the other judges including Justice
Krishna Iyer (as also two future Chief
Justices of India—Justice Chandrachud
and Justice Bhagwati), after holding that

When they erred in the
Maneka Gandhi Case
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“The hydraulic pressures of

great events influence judges”

the government order was illegal and
void, inconsistently and illogically main-
tained the order, impounding the pass-
port on_the basis of a statement made on
behalf of the government by the then
Attorney General that the Government
would give a hearing to Maneka Gandhi,
and if the decision to impound her pass-
port was maintained, its operation would
be limited to six months from the date of
the government decision. Till then the
passport was to remain with the Registrar
of the Court. Virtually an indefinite
impounding of the passport was not_only
tolerated but affirmed by the final Order
of the Court.

Contrast Satawant Singh and Mancka
Gandhi. In 1967 citizen Satwant Singh
as a result of Subba Rao’s judgment got
back his passport on the ground that
the refusal to permit him to go abroad
was violative of his fundamental right
and there was no law which prevented
him from obtaining it. In 1977, citizen
Maneka Gandhi, as a result of Justice
Krishna Iyer’s judgment and the judgment
of six of his other colleagues, all of whom
held that the order impounding her
passport was illegal and void, did not
get back her passport to enable her to
exercise her fundamental right to go
abroad, which fundamental right the Court
had upheld. She won the case but was
denied ultimate relief. The underlying
message of all this was not lost on dis-
criminating members of the bar and
public—the wave of popularity of the
Janata Government. The case was heard
in the second half of 1977, and the judg-

ment was delivered in January 1978, and
the then public unpopularity of the Indifl
Gandhi family did not fail to have thelf
impact on the Court. There was after dl
much truth in Justice Cardozo’s confess
sion made in a different country and in#
different century that the  hydrauli
pressures of great events also influeni
judges; “they do not idly pass them byl

If this is seen as a criticism of Justig8
Krishna Iyer, it is meant to be.

But Subba Rao t0o had his “Achills
heel”. The man who had spoken a greil
deal about the dangers of politiciaii
influen ing judges and insulating
Judiciary from them, was himself seen 0
be hobnobbing with them whilst sl
Chief Justice of India. The day. after e}
retired, he was nominated by the Leadef}
of the Opposition in Parliament, Mg
Minoo Masani, as the Opposition Parif§
nominee for the Office of President, i
was obvious then that he had been mets
ing with leaders and members of polifil
parties whilst still head of the Judiidt}
and whilst still sitting in Court, deciding
cases of citizen against State. The mantéd
of his going did little credit to his oulf
standing career as a great judge.

All of thisin the end goes to shoW
that Judges are hunfan-beings, and (il
human-beings, like stars in the firmameil
have their blemishes; despite sudl
blemishes, they shine. It is to the credi

into account their frailties,
and shine brightly, like the two Pomun
in the Northern Sky.
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Rs. 15 per month”. This, writes Wali
Khan, was unfair, for the Mullahs of
Sitang and Doaba were paid only Rs. 10
per month.

Cunningham’s next concern was that
liaving spent the money to court the
Mullahs, it must now be ascertained
Whether or not they were actively engaged
i anti-Congress propaganda. He wrote
Mot several spies were despatched to
mosques to observe and report
fback whether or not the Mullahs were
Working for their allowances, or abscond-
fing from the assigned job ! The reports
Bleased him, since they stated that the
Mullahs were working hard for their
foney and happily trafficking in Islam
fir & monthly sum of fifteen rupees. The
piogress made by Hazrat Ali of Swat was
Special source of satisfaction. ““Hazrat
Wi, Wazir-i-Azam of Swat is doing
feicellently in Swat and Buner. He uses
Bit Baba Ziarat. Hazrat Ali now covers
e whole of Swat, Buner and Mardan
order.”

In Khyber the Political Agent entrus-

Maulana Abdul Bagi.

e placed implicit trust in him and
aimed to have given him Rs. 1000,

Cunningham wrote : “Jamiat-ul Ulema
foured in Kohat District in June of 194,
id in Peshawar and Mardan in July,
floing intensive propaganda; anti-Axis,
i the Islamic theme, generally, and anti-
Gonzress on the Pakistan theme. Mullahs
i Peshawar and Mardan intensified their
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The British now decided to infiltrate
the familis of ranking nationalist
Muslims. Writes Wali Khan: “The
British strategy wasto befriend those
families whose heads were involved in the
freedom struggle. The two most import-
ant persons fighting the Jehad against the
British were Fagir Ipi and Mullah
Pawandah. Another a was
Haji Sahib Turang

British were most interested in ingratia-
ting themselves with these three indivi-
duals. And their greatest triumph was to
win over the sons of these valiant
patriots, Mullah Pawandah’s son Fazal
Din and Haji Turangzai’s son, Padsha
Gul. If one were to assess the state of
things it becomes apparent that there
were very few  influential persons in the
districts and tribes whom the British
had not obtained for a price. After the
death of Haji Sahib Turangzai and
Mullah Pawandah, Fagir was the only
stalwart whom they could not buy. The
Secretary of State asked the Viceroy to
make a deal with Faqir of Ipig but
the Viceroy wrote of him: “He is not only
implacable, but also completely incorrup-
tible. Who would rid me of this turbulent
priest?”

Votes Wali Khan sardonically : “The
British_did Islam a good turn, by
recording the names and addresses of
these Mullahs.”

The ground having been prepared
with massive bribing, Jinnah and the
British now set about the task of produ-
cing a League Ministry in a_province that
had not elected a single League MLA !

The names and addresses of
British agents are all there
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The mysterious role of

Manthan;

Iskander Mirza in Partition

In 1943 Iskander Mirza, DC of
Peshawar, was invited by the Nawab
Bhopal for a tiger hunt. After
hunting excuse was over, he was put in
contact with Jinnah. Mirza says in his
autobiography that first Jinnah asked
him whether he was a Muslim. He said,
“Since the days of the Prophet.”” Then
he asked. “Do you consider me the lead
of the Indian Muslims?"" He said *¥es.
finnah averred that the League had not

single pro-
vince in the country But if you tried,
» Muslim League Government could be
Province.

formed the Governmenl|

formed in the Frontier
Iskander Mirza said that he was only a
This task could
be accomplished by none oth than the
Governor. He added that the Muslim

League did not exist in that province,

Deputy Commissioner

and its leader, Sardar Aurangzeb Khan
was a very corrupt individual. Jinnah
asked him to leave aside Aurangzeb’s

th and weakness. No matter what

organisational condition  of the
Muslim League, it was imperative that it
form the Government. As a Muslim, it

was his duty to make it happen

Iskander Mirza writes that, later when
Sir George Cunningham returned from

in
his tour abul, he sent for him. No

sooner had he sat down, than Cunning-
ham started speaking about the tremen-
dous pressure he was under, to form a
new Government in the Frontier Province.
He said that the Government of India
wanted to prove that the Frontier was
not with the Congress. Those were the
It of the Quit India

Movement, several members of the

times when, as a r

Assembly had been thrown into- prison
without the benefit of a trial. The Gover
nor was having a field day. He inviled
Aurangzeb Khan to form the Goveris
ment. Iskander Mirza wrote that he did
not have any faith in Aurangzeb Khand
There was only one individual worthy of
trust, Sardar Abdul Rab Nishtar of
Peshawar. At that time, he was opposedl
to the Muslim League and was close {0
the Congress. Iskander Mirza wrote thd
Nishtar was not very partial to Jinnalt
Sahib either. He was a witness to Jinnll
being cursed by Nishtar at the Maliabal
Khan Mosque. Iskander Mirza callé
Nishtar and appealed to him in the name
of Islam. Upon his insistence Nishta®
joined the Muslim League. In this manie
he became a Minister in the Aurangzel
Cabinet. Iskander Mirza wrote
Auranzeb who used to grovel at my feet
became the Chief Minister duc to mj
efforts.” It was for services like thesd
that Iskander Mirza was eventually mads
President of Pakistan!

his

On the subject of Aurangzeb, Cunnings
Aurangzeb is extremely

amenable and anxious to do what | wants

ham  wrots

He seems to have forgotten that the fui
ction of a Minister is to advise thé
Governor. Nearly every file comes from
him with a note, ‘I solicit the adyice ol
H.E. the Governor’ (Cunningham'’s diatf
19 July 1943),

Notes Wali Khan : *“Aurangzeb and
his companions knew where the real seif
of power was located. To have enabled
the Muslim League to form the Govers

ment from an Assembly where there WSl
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Mot even a single person elected from their
party, was a task that could have been
accomplished only by the British and
their Deputy C:
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from the Frontier to Delhi, where he was
Joint Secretary, Ministry of Defence. He
wrote that in February 1947, Jinnah

Soon the name of the League Ministry
in NWEP was, in the words of Cunning
llam (27 May, 1944), “simply mud.” But
he Governor still had no intention of
@ashiering such a bogus ministry. “The
Governor was making every effort to keep
the Government alive. For that reason
e did not call the 1944 Budget Session.
His excuse was that there was no work
for the Assembly.” The Secretary of the
Congress Parliamentary Party presented
the Governor with a memorandum con-
faining twenty signatures, requesting that
lic Assembly be called to debate the no-
ltonfidence motion against Aurangzeb and
s Cabinet. The Governor rejected the
memorandum”,

The 1946 elections gave 33 seats to
Congress and 17 to Muslim League in a
House of 50. The Congress ministry
lecame a thorn in the side of the League
fnd the British.  The new Governor, Olaf
Caroe, was, if anything, even worse than
Cunningham.  Notes Wali Khan : “The
Biitish were hell bent on handing over
this province to the Muslim League. So
fir, nothing had prod: desirable
fesulis. Neither the elections nor  the
Gommunal any foothold to
the League ore, Jinnah hatched a
lingerous plot, the details of which
fikander Mirza has written in his auto-
biography.

Iskandar Mirza had been transferred

inviting him to a meeting
During this meeting the first thing he
asked was, “Do you consider me the
leader of the Indian Muslims? Would you
obey may orders? Iskander Mirza had no
choice but to say, “Yes.” Jinnah then
said that he was afraid he was not going
to get Pakistan unless some serious
trouble was created and the best place to
do this was NWFP and the adjacent tribal
areas. In his view it was important to
tell the British that the Muslims were
seething with anger at their decision to
hand over the country to the Congress.
Jiunah explained that if Pakistan cannot
be won by negotiations, he would achieve
it by combat. Iskander Mirza wrote that
Jinnah wanted him to resign from service,
go into the tribal territory and start a

Jehad! (108)

Iskander Mizra wrote : “He (Jinnah)
said according to his information 1
could achieve this if T really tried.” This
proves that Jinnah had maintained his
contact with Government officials and
knew how to create trouble in the tribal
area. It also shows how cleverly British
officials could arrange a Jehad. Iskander
Mirza reflected on various aspects of
this problem and wrote

“This could only take the form of
raids on the boyder villages in_the settled
area—yet 1 decided % fall in with
Quaid-i-Azam’s Plan. I had no desire to
be branded as a man who was found wan-
ting when the time for action came. With

Rs. I crore given for
bloodbath in NWFEP
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Agent paid Rs. 200 to
shoot at Nehru

the liberal expenditure of money I would
be able to cause some trouble in Wazi-
ristan, Tirah and Mohamand country.
1 gave my estimate for the sum of money
as one crore.” (109)

He asked that a plausible excuse be
found for his disappearance from Delhi.
“Mr Jinnah  had already anticipated
these requirements; he had the cover and
the money ready. The cover was an ap-
pointment with His Highness the Khan
of Kalat, and the treasure was provided
by His Highness, the Nawab of Bhopal.”
On the very same day
Nawab of Bhopal, who gave
him Rs. 20,000 for out of pocket expen-
ses. Jinnah assured him that if he was
killed during the mission, he would see
toit that his family members were well
provided for.

Iskander Mirza
met the

iskander Mirza
diately. He collected a
friends from Dera Ismail Khan and
Peshawar, as well as from the tribal
area. After several discussions, a plan
was drawn up. According to it he would
form liaison with certain loyal supporters
in Waziristan, Tirah and Mohamand.
“But early in May, the Quaid-i-Azam
sent for me again and told me that, as
Pakistan would be conceded, the plan
should be abandoned.” (109)

started work imme-
few faithful

In Peshawar itself, the League led a
raging and tearing campaign, forcing the
Government to open That is what
they wanted. British agent Major Khur-
sheed Anwar gloated : “The mission is
completed. He (Pir of Manki Sharif, a

British agent), wanted Muslim blood {0

be shed; now it has been done. 1

Nor did they stop there. When Nefi
visited NWEP, the League-British alliatéé
violent campaign againi
The propaganda line was
Nehru coming to destroy thei
freedom and enslave them to Hindi
Masood Malik Gulab Khan told Erland
Jansson, author of ‘India, Pakistan'of
Pakhtoonistan : ““The Assistant Poli
Officer, one Abdul Mannan, was patt
cularly helpful and would encourage il
guide them secretly.” Malik Gulab Khi
also admitted that he paid Rs. 20010
snipe at Nehru's plane when it landed
Razmak. (119)

organised a
him.

was

Comments Wali Khan : “The atlid
upon Jawaharlal was supposed fo pioi8
that the Khudai Khidmatgar populif
had taken a down-turn, and that (8
Pakhtoons accepted the political leadél
ship of the League. It did neither,
only proved that the British had tempd8
rarily taken leave of their senses. T
did not even remember that the Khu
Khidmatgar Movement was confined§
the Frontier (Province),
leaders were not.even allowed to stepiald
the tribal areas ™

The British and the League beiie$
determined to partition India, and {8
Congress being tired of endless dispule
and unending violence, it was decided {0
divide the country. But even so, it
decided to stage the farce of Referendu
in NWEP. Writes Wali Khan :
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“The first objection of the Khudai
Khidmatgars to the referendum was that
when both the political parties, the
Congress and the Muslim League, had
agreed on Partition (ratified by the Cen-
fral Working Committee of the Congress)
itwas binding on them in view of their
Kepresentation in the Congress through
Khan Abdul Ghaffar Khan. What was
the need of holding a referendum when
they had accepted the plan of partition,
With NWFP being a part of Pakistan? It
Was an exercise in futility, the result of
Which would be confrontation between
i and pro-Pakistan elements at a time
When the situation was highly explosive.

Muslim blood to

| done.”
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paid Rs. 20010
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“But the Muslim League and the
Biitish had their vested interests in  this
ltferendum, The first objective of the
Muslim League was to create an impres-
Bion that Pakistan was established on
fle demand and insistence of the people
WENWEP. In this process they wanted to
Prove that Khudai Khidmatgars had all
ilong opposed the establisment of an
fllamic State, with the result that refe-
findum was the only recourse.

han : “The attacks
upposed to prove
matgar popularity’
and that the:

“The NWFP was treated differently
ffom the other provinces. When the parti-

ive Assemblics of Bengal and Punjab,
Y ratificd It. Similarly the matter was
to the Sind Assembly. The
s why was it not placed
fore the Legislative Assembly of th
FP? There was an excellent reason
this. If the Khudai Khidmatgars
ided in favour of Pakistan, the
ffision would have to be credited to

it was decided,
But even 50, it Wi

them. This was unacceptable to
Muslim League and to the British.

the

“The Muslim Leagne knew that the
Khudai Khidmatgars would refuse to
participate in the referendum, and it
would go in favour of Pakistan. There-
fore, their second objective was to make
an issue of the referendum result, by
saying that the people of NWFP had no
faith in the Khudai Khidmatgars. This
may become a turning point in_the poli-

tics of NWFP, and a revolutionary
change would occur in its political
scenario. The Muslim League would

then demand a vote of no-confidence in
the light of the referendum. Then there
would be no alternative for the Govern-
ment but to accept the verdiot of the
people and submit its resignation. If the
Government did not resign, it may be
possible for the Governor General to
dismiss it. The Government of NWFP
would be taken away from Khudai
Khidmatgars and be presented on a plat-
ter to the Muslim League.”

Adds Wali Khan that time the
leaders of Khudai Khidmatgars believed
that the Muslim League would not create
any disturbances, once Pakistan was
established. Had they known otherwise,
noboby could have prevented them from
continuing to oppose them. As a matter
of fact, I had personally shown them this
path of confrontation. The Khudai Khid-
matgars wanted Pakhtoonistan and the
British would not concede them this right
of self-determination. Therefore, the only
way out of this predicament would haye
been to pass a resolution in the Legislative

The farce and fraud of
Referendum in NWEP
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Assembly, establishing Pakhtoonistan.
They would have been assured of the sup-
port of the Constituent Assembly of India
which was controlled by the Congress Party.
1f the NWEP people had used the referen-
dum to announce their accession to India,
instead of refraining from voting, they
would certainly have got complete in-
dependence, and also a_promise of pro-
tection from the Congress Government
We should have explained to our people
that if they wanted Pakhtoonistan, they
should cast their vote in favour of acce
sion to India. When I look back in
retrospect, 1 feel that we were fooled by
what then seemed like human ~considera-
tion and Islamic fervour of the leaders of
the Muslim League.”” (129)

The Khudai Khidgmatgars having

boycotted the Referendum, out of 5,72,799
voters, 292118 cast their votes, 2,89,244

(i.6.50.5%) were for Pakistan. However,
this result was achieved with record rigg-
ing : “Bogus votes were cast including
some in the names of our leaders! Two
interesting incidents occurred. One was
narrated to me by Iskander Mirza who,
in turn, was told by the then Deputy
Commissioner of Hazara District. While
inspecting different polling stations, he
went o one in Gilyat. When he asked
how the polling was going on, the stafl
proudly said that this being a hilly tract,
the total number of votes was 200 and all
the 200 votes had been cast. He shouted
at them and said that if some one raised
an objection there would be no answer to
the charge of booth capturing. Another
incident was related to me during the
1970 elections when the National People’s
Party had formed the Government. A
lady MLA of the Muslim League told me
that she had cast fifty-one votes in the
referendum.”

That is how Pakistan came into_bei
—the unholy offspring of communali
and imperialism. (KRM)

—Jinnah Tempts USA —

The American factor in Pakistan
has been operative since before the
birth of that state, writes Wal
Khan.

“On May 1, 1947 two Ameri-
cans, Ronald A. Hare, Head of
the Division of South Asian Affais,
and Thomas E. Weil, Second
Secretary of U.S. Embassy in India,
visited Jinnsh. A detailed account
of this visit was sent by the Ameris
can Charge D’Affaires to Marshall
the Secretary of State. According
to this account, Jinnah stated that
under no condition was he prepared
to accept the scheme for a united
and federated India.  The Muslin
League had decided to_insist upoi
the creation of Pakistan.

“Jinnah sought to impress o
his visitors that the emergence of an
independent, sovereign  Pakistal
would be in consonance will
American interests. Pakistan would
country.  Muslim
together against
Russian aggression.  In that
endeavotr they-would look to_the
United States for assistance, he
added.” (Venkataraman; American
Role in Pakistan.

countries

“This is a variation on the old
British game of hanging around the/[§
Soviet neck, the ‘albatross’ of
Islam.”
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China’s 3 Crore ‘Little Emperors’

China has a population of 100 crores
and 33.7 crores of them are under 14.
Because of the family planning program-
me, 3.5 crore children_have no- siblings
(80 brother or sister). These children
tend o be over-fed and pampered by

World Round-Up

The August issue of NATURE, Brita-
in’s leading science magazine, reports
that the two biggest causes of Colon
Cancer are fatty foods and lack of rough-
age in diet.

Meats are rich in fats—and poor in
roughage. Vegetarian diets are rich in

their parents and

The ‘China Youth News’ recently
carried a 12-part report on ‘The Little
Suns in our Lives’, the “little emperors”.

The parents of one third-grade boy,
for cxample, bought him whatever he
wanted. He dined on meat pies; his
parents o Do He >pumed clothing
that had been worn once. After his
grandfather spanked him for starting a
fight in school, the youngster took a pair
of scissors and threatened to kill himself,
until the grandfather apologized—and
bought him a new toy.

The parents of a 7-year-old girl asked
her to empty and clean the commode;
but she only emptied half of if, becaus
she said she was not the only one who
had used it

These single children become fat from
lack of excrcise and over-eating. Their
parents, operating
Chinese belief that
them with chocolate and sugar.

Many of the children said they want-
ed to be prime minister; few wanted to
be ordinary workers. Nearly half of the
students said their parents hit them if
they scored below 80 on tests.

To help parents raise their “little
suns” in the proper way, about 20,000
“parents” schools” have been established
throughout the country in recent years.

Less Cancer for Vegetarians
Next only to Lung Cancer, caused

mostly by smoking, Colon Cancer is the
big killer in the West.

lentils, salad, vegeta-
bles.

Another possible reason for Colon
Cancer in the West could be that while in
a_vegetarian country like India, people
move their bowels at least once—an

even twice—a day, in non-vegetarian
gountries, they may mnot move  their
bowels for 2-3 days.

The roughage in yegctarian_food
builds up pressure in the intestines a
demands to be excreted.

So much so that Air India planes have
to be provided with more ldmncs than,
say, PanAm or BOAC plane

Why Old Couples Look Alike

Science is lending support to the old
belel that marricd couples eventually
begin to look alik

After 25 years of marriage, couples
who bore no particular resemblance when
first married, came to resemble one ano-
ther, although the ~ resemblance might be
subtle

The more marital happiness a couple
reported, the greater their increase in
facial resemblance.

The increase in facial similarity pro-
bably resuits from decades of shared
emotions, according to Robert Zajonc, a
psychologist at the University of Michi-
gan, who did the research.

r. Robert Zajonc, in cxplammg the
findings, holds that factors such a5 simnlag
diets, and thus deposits o“a[ly issues,
may contribute to the resemblance, but
are not crucial. People often unconsci-
ously mimic the facial expressions of their
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spouses in a silent empathy, and that,
over the years, sharing the same expres
sions, shapes the face similarly

Inan article published in 1985 in
SCIENCE, Dr. Zajonc pointed out
that carotid artery, which supplies blood
to the brain, forks at the neck, sending out
a major branch to the face. As the facial
muscles tense and relax, they tend to act
as tourniquets on the veins, draining
blood from various parts of the brain,
indirectly regulating blond flov and
temperature in various brain areas.

““Common life experiences over years
and years, can alter facial musculature
and wrinkle patterns, leading to an in-
creased resemblance, but there
reason to believe that it has anything to
do with blood flow fo the brain,” said
Paul  Ekmar psychologist at _th
University of Califofnia. Medical School
in San Francisco.

50-lakhs a coat !

Thanks to Russian import of Ameri-
can wheat, Moscow has run up a cumu-
Jative trade deficit of $20 billion over the
last 15 years

Russia would like to increase its ex-
ports to USA, but the latter has refused
to give it the Most  Favoured
Nation_treatment; slaps a blanket
import duty of 38% on Russian goods—
as against only 2.8% on imports from
MEFNs

The US position is that it will not
give Russia MNF treatment, as long as
it does not allow its citizens to freely
migrate to other countries, as per Jackson-

anik amendment

While Russian exports are also limited
by their Sub-standard quality, there is one
Russia item that commands a world
market, and that is Furs. Russian Mink,

Manthay

Sable and Ermine fur coats are the enif
international elite. For example, i
o make just One
only about 2 lakll
pelts a year.

Last month, a ranch mblc coat sold
for $350,000 i.e. about Rs. 50 lakh.

Novel Penalty for
Erring Landlords

A landlord in USA has just bee!
sentenced to live for one month with b
tenants—in the enements let out by il
This is because he repeatedly failed
to maintain the place in good repair.

The landlord is Dr. Milton Avol, 6}
a neuro-surgeon from Beverly Hills, Lo
Angeles.

“Ie's great,” said Raul Hernandel§
Salvadoran immigrant tenant.

will see (he rats come out at n\g\“.
will have to listen to the men out froml
at midnight, yelling at the top. of i
lungs.

he authorities
unusual nature of
making him the

warn them if Dr. Avol strays
150 feet (45 meters) from the

the building, making repairs.
“I'm not ashamed to live in my bill
hl; attorney. He

dition of his
responsibility.

animals and wonder why you have okl

roaches.”

can be jailed for not providing cenff
heating to his tenants
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